
 

 

 

 

 

Grand Panama Beach Resort Board of Directors Meeting 

Thursday July 17, 2025 

5:00pm CST 

 

 

 

 



 

 

TABLE OF 

CONTENTS 

 
COVER PAGE ....................................................... 1 

Table of Contents ................................................................ 2 

AGENDA ............................................................................. 3 

06.25.2025 Minutes  ......................................................... 4-6 

Tower 1 Generator ............................................................ 7-8 

Emergency Protocols ............................................................ 9 

Rust Spot Project .......................................................... 10-33 

Security Contract . ........................................................ 34-57 

 

 

 



11800 Front Beach Rd. Panama City Beach, FL 32407 // 850.691.0984 // lindsay.williams@fsresidential.com 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a meeting of the Board of Directors of Grand Panama Beach Resort 

will be held on the following date, time, and location: 

 

Date: Thursday, July 17, 2025 // Time: 5:00pm CST // Location: 11800 Front Beach Rd. Panama City 

Beach, FL 32407, Tower II Conference Room 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us05web.zoom.us/j/82852055864?pwd=wZGZIOz7kJEuBAwbd4suobBUaGpzpf.1 

Meeting ID: 828 5205 5864 // Passcode: 016848 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ESTABLISH QUORUM 

C. PROOF OF NOTICE 

D. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES; 06.25.2025  

E. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Tower I Generator Update 

b. 2024 Audit Review and Approval 

F. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Emergency Protocols  

b. Rust Spot Project 

c. Owner Requests (U-Haul trailers, Carpets in hallways, BBQ fence, EV 

charging) 

d. Insurance Financing  

e. Security Contract 

G. OWNER COMMENTS 

H. ADJOURNMENT 

 

ON July 14, 2025, THE NOTICE OF THE GRAND PANAMA BEACH RESORT BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS MEETING WAS POSTED AT TOWER I AND TOWER II COMMUNICATION BOARDS IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 718. // Submitted by: Lindsay Williams, CAM 

 

Owners desiring to address the Board regarding any agenda item will be given 3 minutes at the beginning 

of each agenda item.  



Board of Directors Meeting                 
June 25, 2025, at 5:00 P.M. Central 

MINUTES 

415 Richard Jackson Blvd, Suite 304, Panama City Beach, FL 32407 
www.Maxet.net / 850-249-4470 

Charles Knoll = CK, James Eagleson = JE, Ron Kibble = RK, Brad Coleman = BC, Mary Swann = MS, Brenda Roberts = BR, Darrell Caudill = DC 
Rusty Stinson = RS, Mark Huebner = MH, Hailey Tate = HT, Gene Claseman = GC 

U = Unanimous MC = Motion Carries MF= Motion failed 

 

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRESENT: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ASSOCIATION MANAGEMENT: 

Brad Coleman, President 
James Eagleson, Vice President 
Chuck Knoll, Treasurer  
Darrell Caudill, Secretary  
Mary Swann  
Brenda Roberts (absent) 
William “Ron” Kibble 
 
Maxet Management Group 
Gene Claseman, CMCA, AMS, PCAM 
Rusty Stinson, CAM 

1. CALL TO ORDER, QUORUM AND ROLL CALL 
Rusty called the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M. Seven (6) of seven (7) board members were 
present. 

 
2. PROOF OF NOTICE OR WAIVER 

Rusty confirmed a Proof of Notice was posted on property according to Florida Statute 718.112(2) 
c and governing documents. 

3. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Brad Coleman discussed the changes in the Board Room Usage Policy as 

presented with changes in block times and drink policy. Darrell made a motion to 
approve the new policy as presented.  Mary seconded the motion.  All members 
voted unanimously to approve the motion.  Motion carried. 

b. Audit was presented by Ashleigh from Carter.  The board decided to table the audit 
approval until they could further investigate the financial transactions and clean up 
the books. Mary made motion, seconded by James, motion carried unanimously to 
table the approval to next meeting. 

c. Generator Update—Brenda was not at the meeting.  The board heard that a fix was 
being proposed for the current generator and more information would be shared at 
the next board meeting. 

d. Insurance policies were presented by Anthony Dubose.  The board reviewed 
insurance coverage with Anthony Dubose from Coastal Community Insurance. He 
presented proposals for various coverages including flood insurance, commercial 
general liability, umbrella liability, directors and officers liability, and crime insurance. 
The total premium for the current year's coverage would be $308,606, compared to 
$270,000 last year. The board discussed potentially reducing the umbrella liability 
coverage from $15 million to $10 million, which would save approximately 
$18,436.75. Anthony recommended against lowering the coverage due to the high 
risk of liability claims in Florida, but acknowledged the board's option to do so if they 
wished. James made a motion to accept the policies as presented but give Brad and 
Anthony permission to work on lowering rates without changing coverages, 
seconded by Darrell.  Brad, Darrell, Ron, James and Mary voted yes, Chuck voted 
no.  Motion carried. 

e. Purchase of computers and office supplies for First Service Residential—Chuck 
made a motion to approve $3,000 for computers and supplies, Mary seconded the 
motion.  All members voted unanimously to approve the motion.  Motion carried. 

http://www.maxet.net/


Board of Directors Meeting                 
June 25, 2025, at 5:00 P.M. Central 

MINUTES 

415 Richard Jackson Blvd, Suite 304, Panama City Beach, FL 32407 
www.Maxet.net / 850-249-4470 

Charles Knoll = CK, James Eagleson = JE, Ron Kibble = RK, Brad Coleman = BC, Mary Swann = MS, Brenda Roberts = BR, Darrell Caudill = DC 
Rusty Stinson = RS, Mark Huebner = MH, Hailey Tate = HT, Gene Claseman = GC 

U = Unanimous MC = Motion Carries MF= Motion failed 

 

 

 
f. Front Beach Road Project-- The board discussed a legal matter regarding a road 

project where the city offered $207,000 for the property between the two buildings, 
with Brad explaining that while the 30-day deadline was missed, their attorney was 
able to negotiate an extension and secure the city's offer. A motion was made by 
Chuck to grant Brad authority to negotiate and sign off on a settlement for not less 
than $207,000 for various easements and licenses. James seconded the motion.  All 
members voted unanimously to approve motion.  Motion Carried. 

  

4. OPEN FORUM 
The floor was opened to owners present and all questions and concerns were addressed. The 
next board meeting will be on Thursday July 17st at 5:00 P.M. 

5. MOTION TO ADJOURN 
A motion to adjourn was made by James.  Second by Mary 2nd by RK, to adjourn the 
meeting. The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 P.M. CST. 

http://www.maxet.net/


Board of Directors Meeting                 
June 25, 2025, at 5:00 P.M. Central 

MINUTES 

415 Richard Jackson Blvd, Suite 304, Panama City Beach, FL 32407 
www.Maxet.net / 850-249-4470 

Charles Knoll = CK, James Eagleson = JE, Ron Kibble = RK, Brad Coleman = BC, Mary Swann = MS, Brenda Roberts = BR, Darrell Caudill = DC 
Rusty Stinson = RS, Mark Huebner = MH, Hailey Tate = HT, Gene Claseman = GC 

U = Unanimous MC = Motion Carries MF= Motion failed 

 

 

 

 

http://www.maxet.net/


 
 

Quote                                  METROPOWER, INC. | Solutions Powered by People Since 1947 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Description Amount 

Generator Repair. Remove and replace gear driven diesel fuel pump. Test for proper 
operation. 
 
Parts 
Gear Driven Diesel Fuel Pump 
 
Shipping and delivery: 
Expedited 
 
Material: 
Diesel fuel, hardware, misc. 
 
Labor: 
 
 
Service Call Fee (waived for annual maintenance customers) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        Amount 

Please Remit Payment to:     MetroPower, Inc.   l    60 Washington St l    Freeport, FL, 32439 
 
 
Customer Acceptance Signature: 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 

$1,625.37 
 
 

$100.00 
 
    

$75.00 
 
 

$2,320.00 
 
    

$75.00 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

$4,195.37 

 

60 Washington St.  |  Freeport, FL 32439   |   Telephone: 850-622-4099 

SAFETY: Working Together for Tomorrow 

Date: 7/11/2025                                           COMMENTS: Generator Repair 
 

Grand Panama Resort 
11800 Front Beach Rd 
Panama City Beach, FL, 32407 
850-588-8125 
 



 



Grand Panama Beach Resort Emergency Protocol 

 

Water leak in unit – during hours that staff is on site FirstService Residential (FSR) will be 

dispatched to assess the issue and contact any owners that we may need to gain access to units 

to find source of leak. FSR will contact all parties related (Owner, Vendor, Property Manager) to 

the leak and provide assistance with vendors and leak remediation where necessary. During the 

hours that staff is not on site GP Security should be called and asked to source the leak, mitigate 

the leak to the best of their ability and also inform the owners of the units affected by the water 

intrusion. Security will then inform the FSR and then FSR will contact all parties related (Owner, 

Vendor, Property Manager) to the leak and provide assistance with vendors and leak remediation 

where necessary. 

 

Elevator shut down, guest cause, or guest stuck – call Fire Department, call Cavinder, manually 

kill elevator power and put it on independent service so that you can take FD up to floor where 

guests are stuck. Guest caused issue, inform them of fine and get them to pay fine. 

 

Elevator shutdown, fire detection cause – call Fire Department access the fire control room, 

silence and acknowledge the alarm, go see what the alarm is actually saying the location is 

coming from to make sure no fire, then have a manual elevator ready. Then have a fire key set to 

switch reset or bypass to get elevators back to all online as long as device isn’t showing alarm 

any longer. 

 

During working hours, usually 7am – 5pm FSR will provide all necessary steps via the 

maintenance onsite team to remediate and assist with any emergency situation when it comes to 

fire, back flows, generators, elevators, etc.. GP Security will need to focus on actual emergency 

situations that involve life threatening emergencies, parking, pool monitoring, property 

inspections, and the like.  

 



 

June 13, 2024

Grand Panama Condominium
11800 Front Beach Road
Panama City Beach, FL 32407

Attention: Derek Gilbert, CAM

Project: Grand Panama Condominium
Panama City Beach, FL

Regarding: Exterior Condition Survey 

Mr. Gilbert:

Per your request, BECI visited Grand Panama Condominium in Panama City Beach, Florida on May 20, 
2024, to perform an Exterior Condition Survey related to the exterior building enclosure at the above 
referenced property. 

1.0 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

1.1 The purpose of our survey was to assess the exterior building components, including but 
not limited to, stucco, coatings, and sealants at the framed columns of Tower 1 and Tower 
2. BECI also performed one (1) destructive exterior stucco core with the assistance of 
Valcourt Building Services of Florida, LC to observe the existing condition of the sheathing 
and framing members at Column 9 of Tower 1 at Unit No. 1-509. BECI was also contracted 
to perform cores at Column 1 of Tower 1 and Columns 7 and 8 at Tower 2, however after 
reviewing the Columns enumerated in the contract with Management and discussing the 
known issues presenting themselves at both Towers, BECI only performed coring at 
Column 9 of Tower 1. 

1.2 Observations enumerated within this report, unless stated as isolated, are intended to be 
general typical conditions observed at the time of our investigation. As such, our 
conclusions are based on our observations of the existing conditions. The observations and 
opinions provided in this report are the opinion of BECI and are based on our experience, 
as well as the information provided to BECI regarding the exterior building enclosure at 
Grand Panama Condominiums. 

1.3 Components are assessed and rated as good, fair, or poor.  An evaluation of “good” 
indicates almost new condition with no immediate attention required.  A “fair” evaluation 
refers to an acceptable rate of use with no or few immediate needs. The “poor” evaluation 
indicates failure or partial failure and the need for immediate attention.



Grand Panama Page 2 of 7 June 13, 2024

2.0 OBSERVATIONS 

2.1 Derek Gilbert and Stephen Kilcummings with RCAM provided general information about the 
property and recent projects. Mr. Kilcummings informed BECI that the buildings were built 
circa 2008. Mr. Kilcummings stated that cores had already been performed by management 
prior to our site visit at Tower 2 and found corroded framing members and moisture within 
the wall cavity at those areas. BECI observed the Grand Panama Condominium complex 
to be comprised of two (2) 22-story buildings constructed of concrete shear walls, concrete 
columns, structural concrete decks, direct-applied stucco, and conventional stucco 
throughout both towers. Mr. Gilbert informed BECI that an exterior restoration project had 
occurred within the last 2 years by Valcourt Building Services of Florida, LC. BECI was 
informed that the low-slope roofs were restored within the last 2 years. 

2.2 BECI began our observations of the stucco cladding, coatings, and sealants at the base of 
Columns 7 and 8 at Unit No. 2-107 and 2-108. BECI observed delaminated stucco to be 
typical at the floor line joints at Columns 1 and 8 above the private balconies at Unit Nos. 
2-107 and 2-108 (Reference Photo Exhibit Nos. 1 through 3). BECI observed that the stucco 
cladding at Columns 7 and 8 was sealed to the concrete deck with no apparent path for 
drainage of the cladding assembly (Reference Photo Exhibit No. 4). BECI was informed 
that reported leaking at these column conditions had been remedied by management after 
previous coring had been performed. 

Figure 2.2.1 – Column 8, Unit No. 2-108 – 
Delaminated stucco cladding at floor line 
joint.



Grand Panama Page 3 of 7 June 13, 2024

2.3 BECI proceed to perform visual observations of Columns 1 and 9 of Tower 1 at Unit Nos. 
1-501, 1-509, 1-1209, and 1-1201 (Reference Photo Exhibit Nos. 5 and 6). BECI observed 
the stucco cladding at the columns to be in fair condition overall. BECI observed hairline 
cracking to be typical in the conventional stucco cladding at the columns at Floors 5 and 12 
(Reference Photo Exhibit Nos. 7 through 9). BECI observed coating failure to be typical at 
the column-to-slab and column-to-ceiling interfaces at all locations observed. BECI 
observed that the bases of the columns had been sealed to the concrete decks with no 
apparent path for drainage of the cladding assembly at all locations observed (Reference 
Photo Exhibit Nos. 10 and 11). BECI also observed microbial growth at the column-to-
ceiling and column-to-deck interfaces (Reference Photo Exhibit Nos.12 through 16). BECI 
also observed corrosion staining to be typical at the private balcony decks at Unit Nos. 1-
509 and 1-501 indicating prolonged moisture intrusion within the column (Reference Figure 
2.3.1 and Photo Exhibit Nos. 17 through 20).

2.4 During our observations, BECI accessed the attic spaces directly above Columns 1 and 9 
of Tower 1 via Unit Nos. 1-2109 and 1-2101 private balconies. At both attic spaces, BECI 
observed widespread corrosion at the metal roof framing, staining on the attic floor, and 
deteriorated gypsum sheathing, indicating prolonged moisture intrusion (Reference Photo 
Exhibit Nos. 21 through 23). BECI also observed the concrete attic decks to have been 
saturated with moisture above Columns 1 and 9 (Reference Figure No. 2.4.1 and Photo 
Exhibit Nos. 24 and 25). At the private balcony of Unit No. 1-2109, BECI observed the attic 
access door exhibited severe corrosion and sectional loss adjacent to where moisture was 
observed at the attic interior (Reference Photo Exhibit No. 26). 

Figure 2.3.1 – Unit No. 1-509, Column 9 – 
Overall view of staining at deck.



Grand Panama Page 4 of 7 June 13, 2024

2.5 BECI directed Valcourt Building Services of Florida, LC to perform one (1) destructive 
stucco core at the base-of-column condition at Column 9 at Tower 1, at Unit No. 1-509. 
(Reference Figure 2.5.1 and Photo Exhibit Nos. 27 through 31). Upon removal of the stucco 
cladding at the core location, BECI observed water actively evacuating the interior of the 
column onto the private balcony deck below. BECI observed that no means of waterproofing 
had been installed behind the stucco cladding that was installed over the exterior-grade 
gypsum sheathing (Reference Photo Exhibit Nos. 32 and 33). BECI observed that a metal 
base-of-wall flashing had been installed during original construction, however the base-of-
wall flashing had been set in a bed of sealant approximately ¾” in depth, and sealed to the 
cladding, preventing the cladding from draining (Reference Figure 2.5.2 and Photo Exhibit 
Nos. 34 and 35). BECI also observed the gypsum sheathing to be saturated and severely 
deteriorated (Reference Photo Exhibit No. 36). BECI observed severe corrosion and section 
loss at the light gauge metal framing members within the column cavity (Reference Figure 
2.5.3 and Photo Exhibit Nos. 37 through 40). BECI also observed standing water remained 
at the base-of-column condition at the time the destructive core was performed with no 
means of drainage (Reference Figure 2.5.4 and Photo Exhibit Nos. 41 through 44). 

Figure 2.4.1 – Attic Space above Column 1 
– Overall view of saturated concrete deck. 



Grand Panama Page 5 of 7 June 13, 2024

                            
Figure 2.2.1.3 – Stucco core removal in 
progress at Unit 1-509 – Center Column 
– South Facing Elevation.

Figure 2.5.2 – Overall view of base-of-
column flashing set in sealant. 

Figure 2.5.1 – Stucco core removal in 
progress.

Figure 2.5.4 – Overall view of standing water 
in base-of-column condition.

Figure 2.5.3 – Overall view of severely 
deteriorated light gauge metal framing. 



Grand Panama Page 6 of 7 June 13, 2024

3.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 BECI is of the opinion that the areas of hairline cracking, areas of failed sealants, and failed 
coatings at the columns are allowing moisture to penetrate the building envelope. BECI is 
of the opinion that the sealed flashing at the base-of-column condition is prohibiting proper 
drainage of the cladding assembly, contributing to the observed deterioration at the interior 
of the column. BECI is of the opinion that the observed lack of waterproofing behind the 
stucco cladding in conjunction with incorrect sequencing of materials at the base-of-column 
conditions has allowed prolonged moisture intrusion to prematurely deteriorate the 
underling sheathing and framing members. 

3.2 BECI recommends that consideration be given to removing the existing stucco cladding at 
the columns on the South Elevation of Tower 1 down to the sheathing. BECI recommends 
that deteriorated sheathing and all corroded light gauge metal framing members be 
replaced with like in-kind materials. BECI also recommends installing new pre-finished 
aluminum base-of-column flashings at all the base-of-column conditions at all floors and 
installing a new fluid-applied weather-resistive barrier (WRB) over the gypsum sheathing at 
columns. BECI recommends that the new fluid-applied WRB be integrated with the new 
base-of-column flashings to allow for proper drainage and direction of water away from the 
building envelope. BECI recommends installing a new drainable conventional stucco 
cladding inclusive of a fluid-applied WRB and means of drainage at the deck level to 
promote drainage of the framed column conditions. 
 

3.3 Before a restoration effort is scheduled or implemented, a more comprehensive scope of 
work identifying proper methods of restoration and materials to be used should be prepared 
by a design professional. It is fair to assume that the deficiencies observed are resulting in 
an undetermined amount of damage or deterioration to the buildings and underlying 
components at this time. The restoration documents should account for these possible 
damages or deterioration. BECI recommends an exterior restoration is undertaken before 
the Milestone Inspection required by Florida Senate Bill 154. BECI would be glad to assist 
in the development of such restoration documents in the future if a restoration of the noted 
anomalies is undertaken.

Thank you for the opportunity to be of service. We trust that this report is informative and will assist the 
Association in identifying scope items to be included during the next restoration. Please contact our Destin 
office with questions or if you wish to discuss this report in further detail. 

REPORT BY: 
BECI

__________________________
Noah Downs

__________________________
Gordon Porter, REWO, FAA sUAS

Project Engineer II Project Manager II

Attachements : Appendix A : BECI Photo Exhibit (8 Pages)  



Grand Panama – Exterior Condition Survey
 Photo Log

May 20, 2024

Page 1 of 8

Photo 1
Tower 2 – Column 7 – Overall view. 

Photo 2
Tower 2 – Column 8 – Overall view of 
delaminated stucco cladding at floor line. 

Photo 3
Tower 2 – Column 7 – Overall view of 
delaminated stucco cladding below floor line. 

Photo 4
Tower 2 – Column 8 – Overall view of column 
sealed at base-of-wall condition. 

Photo 5
Tower 1 – Column No. 1 – Overall view.

Photo 6
Tower 1 – Column No. 9 – Overall view. 



Grand Panama – Exterior Condition Survey
 Photo Log

May 20, 2024

Page 2 of 8

Photo 7
Unit No. 1-501 – Overall view of stucco cracking at 
column. 

Photo 8
Tower 1 – Column No. 1 – Overall view of stucco 
cladding in fair condition.  

Photo 9
Tower 1 – Column No. 1 – Overall view of stucco 
cladding in fair condition.

Photo 10
Unit No. 1-1201 – Overall view of column sealed 
to deck. 

Photo 11
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of column sealed to 
deck. 

Photo 12
Unit No. 1-1209 – Overall view of microbial growth 
at base-of-column. 



Grand Panama – Exterior Condition Survey
 Photo Log

May 20, 2024

Page 3 of 8

Photo 13
Unit No. 1-1209 – Overall view of coating failure 
and microbial growth observed at column-to-
ceiling interface.

Photo 14
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of microbial growth 
at column-to-ceiling interface.

Photo 15
Unit No. 1-1201 – Microbial growth observed at 
column-to-deck interface.

Photo 16
Unit No. 1-1201 – Microbial growth observed at 
column-to-deck interface.

Photo 17
Unit No. 1-501 – Overall view of severe staining at 
balcony deck adjacent to column.  

Photo 18
Unit No. 1-501 – Overall view of severe staining at 
balcony deck adjacent to column.



Grand Panama – Exterior Condition Survey
 Photo Log

May 20, 2024

Page 4 of 8

Photo 19
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of severe staining at 
balcony deck adjacent to column. 

Photo 20
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of staining at 
balcony slab edge adjacent to column. 

Photo 21
Column 1 – Attic Space – Overall view of 
deteriorated gypsum sheathing and evidence of 
moisture intrusion. 

Photo 22
Column 1 – Attic Space – Overall view of corroded 
framing track. 

Photo 23
Column 9 – Attic Space – Overall view of corroded 
framing track and saturated sheathing. 

Photo 24
Column 1 – Attic Space – Overall view of 
saturated concrete deck. 



Grand Panama – Exterior Condition Survey
 Photo Log

May 20, 2024

Page 5 of 8

Photo 25
Column 9 – Attic Space – Overall view of 
saturated concrete deck.

Photo 26
Unit No. 1-2109 – Overall view of severe corrosion 
and section loss at attic access door. 

Photo 27
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of core removal in 
progress.

Photo 28
Tower 1 – Unit No. 1-509 – Destructive core 
removal in progress.

Photo 29
Tower 1 – Unit No. 1-509 – Destructive core 
removal in progress.

Photo 30
Tower 1 – Unit No. 1-509 – Destructive core 
removal in progress.



Grand Panama – Exterior Condition Survey
 Photo Log

May 20, 2024

Page 6 of 8

Photo 31
Tower 1 – Unit No. 1-509 – Destructive core 
removal in progress.

Photo 32
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of deteriorated 
stucco slip sheet. 

Photo 33
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of self-adhered 
flashing behind base-of-column flashing.  

Photo 34
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of base of wall 
flashing installed on bed of sealant. 

Photo 35
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of base of wall 
flashing installed on bed of sealant. 

Photo 36
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of saturated and 
deteriorated gypsum sheathing. 



Grand Panama – Exterior Condition Survey
 Photo Log

May 20, 2024

Page 7 of 8

Photo 37
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of severely corroded 
light gauge metal framing members. 

Photo 38
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of severely corroded 
light gauge metal framing members. 

Photo 39
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of severely corroded 
light gauge metal framing members. 

Photo 40
Tower 1 – Unit No. 1-509 – Standing water 
present inside of stucco column core.

Photo 41
Tower 1 – Unit No. 1-509 – Standing water 
present inside of stucco column core.

Photo 42
Tower 1 – Unit No. 1-509 – Standing water 
present inside of stucco column core.



Grand Panama – Exterior Condition Survey
 Photo Log

May 20, 2024

Page 8 of 8

Photo 43
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of standing water 
inside column. 

Photo 44
Unit No. 1-509 – Overall view of standing water 
inside column. 



 

 

Proposal for: 
 

Grand Panama Beach Resort 
Columns 1 & 9 South Tower 
Columns 7 & 8 North Tower 

11807 Front Beach Road 
Panama City Beach, FL 32407 

 
Presented To: 
Rusty Stinson 

Maxet Management Group 
 

June 13th, 2025 

Larry LeBlanc 
Business Development Manager 

LLeBlanc@Valcourt.net 
850-737-0485 



 

  1 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This scope of work pertains to columns 1 and 9 on the South tower and columns 7 and 8 on 
the North tower. 
 
Base Bid:  

1) Remove the existing stucco cladding at the columns 1 and 9 (North Tower) and 7 and 8 
(South Tower) down to the sheathing. 

2) Replace all sheathing and corroded metal framing (we have assumed 10% of the overall 
metal framing, or 275 LF) with like in-kind materials. 

3) Install new pre-finished aluminum base of column flashings at all floors 
4) Install fluid applied weather resistive barrier (Finestop RA or equal) over gypsum 

sheathing at columns to be tied in with new base to wall column flashings 
5) Install new drainable conventional stucco cladding to match existing to columns  

 
Qualifications: 

1) Our proposal includes 100% sheathing removal to allow full inspection of metal framing. 

2) BE-CI to approve our scope of work prior to work commencing, at the cost of others, if 
required. Any altering of the current scope of work will be reflected in a change order. 

 

Grand Panama Beach Resort  
11807 Front Beach Rd.- Panama City Beach, FL 32407 



 

1 

 

 
 
 
WE HEREBY PROPOSE to furnish labor, material, equipment and insurance – complete in 
accordance with this proposal dated June 13th, 2025 for the following values: 
 

Base Bid:     $364,685.00 
 

Repairs will be quantified at a minimum of one (1) unit per location. 

Permitting fees are not included. If required, Valcourt will procure and manage the permit 
application process. However, Owner is to pay all permitting costs direct to the applicable 
municipality. Permit administrative or expediter fees that Valcourt incurs will be billed directly 
to the Owner. 

Additionally, the “Proposal Price/Bid Price” (including all Alternate, Unit, and Time & Material 
pricing) for this Project has been calculated based on the current cost of component building 
materials and labor. The market for building materials and labor are currently experiencing 
unprecedented volatility, and the prices of materials and cost of labor are increasing at an 
uncontrolled rate and pace. Considering this, and notwithstanding any contrary or conflicting 
provision in the “Bid Documents”, if there is an increase in the price of any applicable materials 
or cost of labor subsequent to the date of this Proposal/Bid, the Proposal Price/Bid Price, and 
the resulting Contract Sum/Price, will increase accordingly. Notwithstanding, any contrary or 
conflicting provision in the “Bid Documents”, Valcourt submits the attached Proposal/Bid 
contingent upon Valcourt’s right to increase the Proposal Price/Bid Price, and the resulting 
Contract Sum/Price, by the amount of any increased costs of materials and/or labor prior to, or 
during, the performance of the Work by Valcourt. 
 
The General Conditions, attached hereto as “Exhibit A”, are incorporated herein as if fully set 
forth herein, and performance of the Work as proposed in this Proposal is contingent upon 
the foregoing incorporation. 
 
Owner/Manager  Valcourt Exterior Building Services of Florida, L.C. 

By:   By:  

Date:   Date:  

 

Grand Panama Beach Resort  
11807 Front Beach Rd.- Panama City Beach, FL 32407 

 



1 

 

Exhibit “A” to the Proposal 
General Conditions 

 
The following disclosure is provided pursuant to Chapter 713.015, Florida Statutes: 

 
ACCORDING TO FLORIDA'S CONSTRUCTION LIEN LAW (SECTIONS 713.001-713.37, FLORIDA 
STATUTES). THOSE WHO WORK ON YOUR PROPERTY OR PROVIDE MATERIALS AND SERVICES 
AND ARE NOT PAID IN FULL HAVE A RIGHT TO ENFORCE THEIR CLAIM FOR PAYMENT AGAINST 
YOUR PROPERTY. THIS CLAIM IS KNOWN AS A CONSTRUCTION LIEN. IF YOUR CONTRACTOR OR 
A SUBCONTRACTOR FAILS TO PAY SUBCONRACTORS, SUB-SUBCONTRACTORS, OR MATERIAL 
SUPPLIERS. THOSE PEOPLE WHO ARE OWED MONEY MAY LOOK TO YOUR PROPERTY FOR 
PAYMENT, EVEN IF YOU HAVE ALREADY PAID YOUR CONTRACTOR IN FULL. IF YOU FAIL TO PAY 
YOUR CONTRACTOR YOUR CONTRACTOR MAY ALSO HAVE A LIEN ON YOUR PROPERTY. THIS 
MEANS IF A LIEN IS FILED YOUR PROPERTY COULD BE SOLD AGAINST YOUR WILL TO PAY FOR 
LABOR, MATERIALS, OR OTHER SERVICES THAT YOUR CONTRACTOR OR A SUBCONTRACTOR 
MAY HAVE FAILED TO PAY. TO PROTECT YOURSELF, YOU SHOULD STIPULATE IN THIS CONTRACT 
THAT BEFORE ANY PAYMENT IS MADE YOUR CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE YOU WITH 
A WRITTEN RELEASE OF LIEN FROM ANY PERSON OR COMPANY THAT HAS PROVIDED TO YOU A 
"NOTICE TO OWNER". FLORIDA'S CONSTRUCTION LIEN LAW IS COMPLEX AND IT IS 
RECOMMENDED THAT YOU CONSULT AN ATTORNEY. 
 
A. Contract Documents 
 
1. The Contract Documents are (1) the Proposal dated June 13th, 2025, and (2) these General Conditions (which are Exhibit “A” to the Proposal and are 
incorporated into the Proposal). “Acceptance” of the Contract Documents by Owner/Manager constitutes a binding contract between Valcourt Exterior 
Building Services of Florida, L.C., (“Contractor”) and Grand Panama Beach Resort Condominium Association, Inc. (“Owner/Manager”). The 
Contract Documents terms supersede all asserted agreements between the parties, written or oral. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that the 
Proposal may be withdrawn if not Accepted by Owner/Manager within 30 days of the of the Proposal date.  
 
2. “Acceptance” of the provisions of the Contract Documents by Owner/Manager, including these General Conditions, shall be conclusively evidenced 
by Owner/Manager’s execution of the Proposal and/or upon “Ratification” by Owner/Manager. Ratification of the provisions of the Contract 
Documents by Owner/Manager shall occur when, upon Owner/Manager instruction, Contractor commences to perform the Work stated in the Proposal 
(regardless of whether the Proposal, or any other document, has been executed by Owner/Manager). Upon such Contractor commencement of Work, 
Owner/Manager shall be conclusively construed to have ratified, and shall be bound to, all the terms and provisions of all the Contract Documents. 
 
3. Owner/Manager Acceptance of the Contract Documents constitutes Owner/Manager’s agreement that the provisions of the Contract Documents 
shall supersede any conflicting terms in any other document referenced by the Contract Documents or executed between the parties, at any time, 
notwithstanding any provision of any such document purporting to supersede or cancel the provisions of the Contract Documents. Owner/Manager 
acknowledges and agrees that Contractor would not have undertaken to perform the Work unless all the provisions of all the Contract Documents 
were agreed by Owner/Manager to be binding on Owner/Manager and to supersede all terms of any other executed or non-executed document.   
 
B. Contractor Responsibilities 
 
1. Contractor shall supervise the Work, using Contractor’s best skill and attention. Contractor shall be responsible for construction means and methods, 
and for coordinating the Work. Contractor will furnish the labor, materials, and equipment necessary to perform the Work in a workmanlike manner. 
Contractor shall appoint a Project Manager to supervise the Work. Contractor may subcontract portions of the Work and, if so, Contractor shall be 
responsible for the acts or omissions of its subcontractors in performance of the Work. 
 
2. Contractor shall perform in compliance with applicable laws, codes and manufacturer's specifications, and shall be responsible for safety 
administration on the site, within its reasonable control. Contractor shall keep the site reasonably clean and free from accumulation of debris. Contractor 
shall be responsible for damages caused by Contractor, but only to the extent: (a) such damages are caused by Contractor, its subcontractors, or anyone 
for whom they bear legal responsibility, and (b) such damages are not excluded from Contractor’s responsibility in the Contract Documents. 
 
3. If applicable, Contractor shall secure, and Owner/Manager shall pay for (in addition to the Contract Sum), any required building permits.  
 
4. Contractor has visited the site and has become reasonably familiar with the visible conditions under which the Work is to be performed.  If, however, 
Contractor encounters any hidden, changed or latent conditions and/or obstructions not visible prior to performance of the Work, or any aspect thereof 
(including, but not limited to, substrate conditions), which delays, hinders, or obstructs the Work, or materially increases the cost of the Work, 



2 

 

Contractor shall not be held responsible for such conditions, any expenses or delay caused thereby shall not be the responsibility of Contractor, and 
Contractor shall be entitled to a change order for an extension of time and/or increase in the Contract Sum as the circumstances may equitably dictate.  
 
C. Warranty  
 
Contingent upon payment of the Contract Sum to Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents, Contractor warrants to Owner/Manager, 
for a period of one year from completion, that the materials furnished under the Contract Documents will be new and that the workmanship will be 
free from defects. Contractor’s warranty excludes liability for design defect, or damage or defect caused by misuse, abuse, modifications not executed 
by Contractor, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. Liability under this warranty 
shall be limited to defects in workmanship and shall not include any implied, consequential or resultant damages of any nature. Liability shall be 
limited to an amount not to exceed the Contract Sum. The warranty is not transferable or assignable without the written consent of Contractor. 
Owner/Manager’s sole and exclusive remedy for any claims for defects in workmanship shall be pursuant to this warranty or for breach of warranty.  
This warranty shall not be effective unless and until all monies due under the Contract Documents have been paid to Contractor in full.  
 
D. Insurance 
  
1.  Contractor shall furnish to Owner/Manager a Certificate of Insurance evidencing that the following insurance coverage and limits are in force: 
 
A. Commercial General Liability:  Each Occurrence/General Aggregate $1,000,000/$2,000,000 

Products/Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 
Personal & Advertising Injury  $ 1,000,000 

B. Automobile Liability:  Bodily Injury/Property Damage $1,000,000 
C. Excess Liability/Umbrella: Each Occurrence/Aggregate $10,000,000/$10,000,000 
D. Workers’ Compensation:  Per Statute 
E. Employers Liability:  Each Accident $1,000,000 
 
2.  Owner/Manager and Contractor waive all rights and claims against each other for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss to the extent those 
losses are covered by policies of property insurance. The policies shall provide such waivers of subrogation by endorsement or otherwise. The 
foregoing waiver of subrogation shall be effective as to a person or entity even though that person or entity would otherwise have a duty of 
indemnification, did not pay the insurance premium directly or indirectly, or whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in the 
property damaged. 
 
E. Contract Time 
  
1. Contractor shall progress diligently in the performance of the Work and pursuant to the Contract Time stated in the Proposal. 
 
2. If Contractor is delayed or disrupted in the commencement or progress of the Work, by any act or omission of Owner/Manager or its representatives, 
suppliers or other contractors, or by hidden or latent conditions, or by changes in the Work, or by any acts of force majeure including wars, flood, 
earthquake, unavailability of materials, epidemic, quarantine, riot, insurrection, governmental order, labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in 
transportation, unavoidable casualties, weather, or any other causes beyond Contractor's reasonable control, then the Contract Time shall be extended 
by written Change Order for such time that Contractor’s schedule has been delayed thereby. Any Saturday, Sunday or holiday performance of the 
Work shall not be considered a “make-up day” which offsets justifiable delay event days accrued throughout the performance of the Work and, instead, 
any justifiable delay event shall result in an extension of the schedule of performance, the Contract Time and the completion date.  
 
3. Owner/Manager acknowledges that Contractor is a non-union contractor and, as such, does not have any agreements with labor organizations. 
Contractor shall not be responsible or liable for any delays, damages or disruptions resulting from any labor dispute.   
 
4. If Owner/Manager and Contractor have agreed to the assessment of Liquidated Damages for delay, then Owner/Manager shall not, under any 
circumstance, be entitled to any claim or demand for, or payment for, any losses or damages (or alleged losses or damages) on account of (or allegedly 
on account of) hindrances or delays (or allegedly arising from hindrances or delays) other than its entitlement to such Liquidated Damages. 
 
5. Should Contractor’s commencement or performance of the Work be delayed or disrupted by any acts or omissions of Owner/Manager or its 
representatives, design professionals, separate contractors, or any of their representatives or suppliers, Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that, 
to the extent that such delay subjects Contractor to an increase in the prices of materials that are purchased for use in performance of Contractor’s 
Work, over and above prices for materials that were in place by Contractor’s usual and ordinary suppliers prior to such delay or hindrance, or causes 
additional expense of equipment rental, or causes additional demobilization and remobilization, then Owner/Manager agrees to pay that cost increase 
to Contractor in addition to the Contract Sum.  
 
F. Contract Sum and Payment 
 
1. Owner/Manager shall pay Contractor for the performance of the Work in accordance with, and pursuant to, the terms of the Proposal, which may 
include a lump sum amount, unit-pricing, “time and material”, daily rate, or a combination thereof. Collectively, the costs to be paid to Contractor for 
performance of the Work is the “Contract Sum.”   
 



3 

 

2. If applicable, sales and/or use tax will be added to the Contract Sum unless Contractor is provided with an appropriate certificate of sales tax 
exemption.  Although Contractor will pay sales tax levied on materials at the point of purchase, Owner/Manager shall be responsible for those taxes. 
Should a sales tax be levied on the Contract Sum, or any portion, said tax will be added to the invoicing, and shall be paid by Owner/Manager. 
 
3. Based on periodic Invoices submitted by Contractor, Owner/Manager shall make payment of the Contract Sum (or applicable portion) to Contractor 
within 30 days of invoicing.  Payments due and unpaid shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate of 1.5% per month, plus reasonable 
attorney’s fees and collection costs which shall be paid by Owner/Manager to Contractor on demand, in addition to the Contract Sum.  
 
4. If Owner/Manager fails to make payment of any invoice due and owing, or fails to agree to a change order for increase in the Contract Sum or 
Contract Time required by the Contract Documents, Contractor may, after seven (7) days written notice to Owner/Manager, suspend or terminate the 
Contract Documents and the Work, and recover from Owner/Manager payment for all Work executed and the cost of any purchased or leased materials 
and equipment (including a reasonable profit thereon of twenty percent (20%)), as well as Contractor’s incurred costs arising from such suspension 
or early termination and, in the case of suspension, Contractor’s incurred costs of demobilization and remobilization.  
 
5. Contractor shall not be required to execute any document not approved by Contractor as a condition of receipt of payment due and owing. The form 
for any releases of lien shall be as provided in Section 713.20, Florida Statutes. The form for any final contractor's affidavit shall be as provided in 
Section 713.06(2), Florida Statutes. 
 
6. The cost of any bonds is not included in the Contract Sum, and should Owner/Manager elect to obtain any bonds, such bonds will be provided at 
an additional cost of two percent (2%) of the Contract Sum (as it may increase), and Owner/Manager acknowledges that any bonds are for the duration 
of the project only, and if any additional maintenance or warranty bonds are requested, additional charges shall apply. 
 
7. As required, Contractor will supply pigtails for each swing stage, but Owner/Manager shall contract separately with its electrician and all electrical 
costs and installation charges related to installation of the pigtails shall be the expense of Owner/Manager in addition to the Contract Sum.  
 
8. If, prior to commencement, or during performance, of the Work, the cost of materials to be used in performance of Contractor’s Work increases 
over the prices for materials that were in place as of the date of Contractor’s Proposal, then Owner/Manager agrees to pay such material cost increase(s) 
to Contractor, and the Contract Sum shall be adjusted by the direct amount of any such increase in the cost of materials. Contractor will provide 
written notice to Owner/Manager stating the increased cost, the materials at issue, and the source of supply. Such increase in material costs shall be 
documented through quotes, invoices, or receipts. Should the delivery of materials be delayed due to shortage or unavailability of such materials, 
Contractor shall not be liable for any costs or damages associated with such delay(s). 
 
G. Owner/Manager Responsibilities 
 
1. Owner/Manager shall appoint a representative with the power to bind Owner/Manager. Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of 
information furnished by Owner/Manager. 
 
2. Owner/Manager shall secure and pay for any necessary permits (other than building permit, if applicable, which shall be secured by Contractor and 
paid for by Owner/Manager), approvals, easements, assessments, and charges required for the construction, change, use or occupancy of its structures. 
Owner/Manager shall complete and record Notice of Commencement in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 713.13, Florida Statutes, prior 
to commencement of the Work, and a certified copy posted prominently upon the property. 
 
3.  Owner/Manager shall: (a) grant access to the site (including, but not limited to, during nights, weekends and holidays) and assign acceptable 
parking spaces, loading docks and service elevators to Contractor; (b) provide water and electricity at the site of the Work at Owner/Manager’s cost 
and expense; (c) remove or protect personal property and items in the work area (Contractor will not be responsible for any damages to personal 
property or items remaining in the work area); (d) clean dirt and water spots from windows after the work is completed unless specifically included 
in the scope of Work under the Proposal; (e) make notification of the Work being performed in order to avoid any injuries or damages to personal 
belongings and be responsible for enforcement of restricted areas (Contractor will pay no compensation for damages or injuries occurring within the 
zoned areas); (f) perform any trimming or pruning of foliage which may interfere with the Work; (g) remove and replace any shutters or other 
protective devices impeding the Work, and; (h) advise residents/tenants/unit owners of potential damage that may occur in the normal course of work, 
such as from vibrations or dust, and the required precautions to be taken by such individuals. 
 
4. Owner/Manager shall be responsible for assessment of potential plant, foliage or tree damage from unavoidable exposure to fumes, over spray 
and/or residue of materials, and shall protect or replace plants accordingly. Protection and replacement of plants, foliage or trees shall be performed 
by Owner/Manager, solely at the discretion and expense of Owner/Manager. 
 
5. Owner/Manager shall be responsible for rerouting or diversion of power or utility lines and any cost or expense associated with, or arising from, 
any required rerouting or diverting of any power or utility line is in addition to the Contract Sum.  
 
H. Damages and Risk of Loss 
 
1. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that minor interior wall damage, including but not limited to “nail pops”, drywall cracking/separation, 
or drywall tape dislocation; (2) damage to personal effects in contact with interior walls (including but not limited to hanging pictures and items on 
shelves), or; (3) damage to any personal property remaining on balconies or in the work area during the performance of the Work, are all anticipated 



4 

 

and common events arising from performance of the Work, and that such interior wall damage or damage to personal effects will arise despite 
compliant, non-negligent and workmanlike performance by Contractor. The foregoing interior wall damage and/or damage to personal effects shall 
not be, and shall not be construed as, damages caused by Contractor’s negligence or willful acts or breach of the Contract Documents and shall not 
give rise to any liability (contractual or otherwise) or responsibility to repair damages, or replace items, on the part of Contractor. 
 
2. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that certain equipment is required to perform the Work and, despite best commercially reasonable efforts 
undertaken by Contractor, landscaping and/or asphalt or concrete surfaces may inevitably be damaged by the use of such equipment, and, in accordance 
with the foregoing, Contractor shall not be responsible, or bear any liability, for any loss, cost, expense or damage arising from damage to landscaping 
and/or asphalt or concrete surfaces by use of Contractor equipment in performance of the Work. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner/Manager 
shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Contractor, its officers, directors, members, shareholders, agents and employees from liability, damages, 
losses and costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees, arising from damage to landscaping and/or asphalt or concrete surfaces 
owned by third parties, by use of Contractor equipment in performance of the Work. To the extent that Owner/Manager’s obligation to indemnify as 
set forth herein arises in whole or in part by the acts, omissions, or defaults of the indemnified parties, such  obligation shall be limited to One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence which sum the parties acknowledge bears a reasonable commercial relationship to the Contract Documents. 
 
3. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that the Work requires that areas being treated remain undisturbed for periods of time, and that aspects 
of the Work create potentially unsafe conditions, so restrictions of access to certain areas of the property will be required during portions of the Work, 
Contractor shall not be responsible or liable for damages to items located or parked within the restricted areas and shall not be liable for injuries or 
damages to persons, property, or the Work as a result of unauthorized activity by any person within the restricted areas. 
 

 4. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that performance of the Work will generate noise and/or dust throughout the performance of the Work. 
 
5. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that once Contractor has completed installation of its materials in a particular location and those aspects 
of the Work have been inspected and approved by Owner/Manager, or its representatives, Contractor assumes no further responsibilities for protection 
of those aspects of the Work, except from damage that may occur as a result of completion of the balance of the Work, but only to the extent caused 
by the act or omission of Contractor or by Contractor’s subcontractors. 
 
6. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that Owner/Manager bears the risk of loss to the property and the Work for any damage caused to the 
building, the site, the Work or the materials used in the performance of the Work, which is caused by any flood, storm, hurricane, tornado, fire, 
earthquake, natural disaster, or any event beyond Contractor’s control. 
 
7. If Contractor provides Owner/Manager or its representatives access to the Work by use of access equipment, then prior to use of Contractor access 
equipment, Owner/Manager and its representatives will execute Contractor’s Standard Release for Use of Contractor Access Equipment which 
releases Contractor for damages or injuries arising from Owner/Manager and/or its representatives’ use of Contractor access equipment. 

 
I. Liability and Indemnification 
 
1. Contractor shall indemnify Owner/Manager from and against claims, damages and losses to the extent arising out of or resulting from performance 
of the Work, provided that such claim, damage or loss is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of 
tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of Contractor, a subcontractor, anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable. Notwithstanding any conflicting provision of any other 
document, or any provision of any other document, which purports to obligate Contractor to a contractual duty to indemnify and hold Owner/Manager 
harmless from any claim, damage, loss, or expense attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible 
property, this provision shall be the sole and only contractual indemnification and hold harmless provision binding Contractor and/or obligating 
Contractor to indemnify for such claims, damages, losses or expenses. 
 
2. Owner/Manager shall have a duty to cooperate with Contractor and/or its third-party administrator or insurance carrier in the investigation of any 
damages, injury or claims alleged to arise from the Contract Documents and/or the Work performed under the Contract Documents. 
  
3. Owner/Manager represents and warrants that there is no pending litigation and/or claim(s), brought by Owner/Manager or any third-party, arising 
from or regarding the building envelope, façade or roof, or related to alleged moisture intrusion. The foregoing representation and warranty is material 
to the Contract Documents and Contractor agrees to perform the Work, and enters into the Contract Documents, in reliance on Owner/Manager’s 
representation and warranty. 
 
4. It is not the intention of the parties hereto to create or impute any contractual obligation to any third parties, including, but not limited to, any 
tenants, homeowners, unit owners or residents, and such parties shall not be, and shall not be construed as, third-party beneficiaries of the Contract 
Documents. For the avoidance of doubt, if Owner/Manager is a Condominium or Homeowners Association, Owner/Manager’s constituent unit owners 
and/or residents are not intended by the parties hereto as third-party beneficiaries of the Contract Documents, it is not the intention of the parties 
hereto to create or impute any contractual obligation to the constituent unit owners and/or residents arising from the Contract Documents, and such 
constituent unit owners and/or residents shall not be, and shall not be construed as, third-party beneficiaries of the Contract Documents. 
 
5. Contractor and Owner/Manager waive all claims against each other for consequential or incidental damages arising out of or relating to the Contract 
Documents or the Work, including, but not limited to, claims for consequential damages arising from delay. This mutual waiver includes damages 
incurred by Owner/Manager for actual or alleged losses of use, income, profit, financing, business, and for loss of management or employee 



5 

 

productivity, and damages incurred by Contractor for losses of financing, business, and for loss of profit except anticipated profit arising directly from 
the Work.  This mutual waiver is applicable to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination in accordance with the Contract Documents.  
 
6. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner/Manager shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Contractor, its officers, directors, members, 
shareholders, agents and employees from liability, damages, losses and costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees, but only to the 
extent caused in whole or in part by any act, omission or default of Owner/Manager, or any of its representatives or agents, or their respective 
employees, or anyone for whom Owner/Manager bears legal responsibility. Owner/Manager agrees that, in addition to other good and valuable 
consideration, the first $100.00 of the Contract Sum shall serve as adequate consideration for Owner/Manager’s indemnification obligation hereunder.  
 
7. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that the Work to be performed by Contractor arises from pre-existing defects present in the building 
prior to performance of the Work, and these pre-existing conditions may be the subject of current or future claim, dispute, or litigation.  In recognition 
of the foregoing, therefore, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner/Manager shall indemnify, defend, reimburse and hold harmless Contractor, 
and its agents, members, affiliates and employees, from and against any and all costs, claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited 
to attorneys' fees (and including but not limited to the cost and expense of Contractor subpoena response and/or Contractor witness testimony in 
deposition, trial or otherwise), when such costs, claims, damages, losses and expenses are caused, or occasioned by, or related to pre-existing defects, 
or alleged pre-existing defects, or arise from claims, disputes or litigation, but only to the extent such costs, claims, damages, losses and expenses are 
not caused by the negligent act or omission of Contractor, its subcontractors, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose 
acts they may be liable. 
 
8. If Contractor encounters a hazardous material or substance (including but not limited to asbestos containing materials, lead, silica, and 
polychlorinated biphenyl (PCBs)) Contractor shall immediately stop Work in the affected area and Owner/Manager shall bear full responsibility for 
rendering the material and/or site harmless. Work in the affected area shall resume only upon written agreement of Owner/Manager and Contractor. 
By change order, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately, and the Contract Sum shall be increased in the amount of Contractor’s reasonable 
additional costs of shutdown, delay and start-up.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner/Manager shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, 
and its agents and employees from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or 
resulting from performance of the Work in an area affected by hazardous materials present at the site (and not brought to the site by Contractor).  To 
the extent allowable by law, if Contractor is held liable by a government agency for any costs (including, but not limited to, the cost of remediation 
of a hazardous material or substance, or costs arising from worker exposure) by reason of performing Work as required by the Contract Documents, 
Owner/Manager shall indemnify Contractor for all cost and expense thereby incurred. To the extent that Owner/Manager’s obligation to indemnify 
as set forth herein arises in whole or in part by the acts, omissions, or defaults of the indemnified parties, such  obligation shall be limited to One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence which sum the parties acknowledge bears a reasonable commercial relationship to the Contract 
Documents. 
 
9. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that moisture infiltration issues at the building exist, and pre-exist the Work, and, as a result, it is possible 
that fungi/mold/organic pathogens or other contaminants (airborne and otherwise) may already be present in or about the building/job site. The parties 
acknowledge that Contractor has been retained to perform limited and defined installation work on the building as delineated in the Proposal scope of 
Work, and Contractor has not agreed to perform the prevention, detection, removal or eradication of mold/fungi/organic pathogens and other 
contaminants. Contractor shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless, by Owner/Manager, from and against any and all claims, suits or damages 
resulting in anyway from any mold/fungi/organic pathogens or other contaminants present at the job site before, during and after Contractor has 
completed its Work pursuant to the Contract Documents. To the extent that Owner/Manager’s obligation to indemnify as set forth herein arises in 
whole or in part by the acts, omissions, or defaults of the indemnified parties, such  obligation shall be limited to One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) 
per occurrence which sum the parties hereto acknowledge bears a reasonable commercial relationship to the Contract Documents. 
 
10. None of Owner/Manager’s or Contractor’s covenants, undertakings or agreements herein are made or intended as personal covenants, undertakings 
or agreements by Owner/Manager’s or Contractor’s partners, members, managers, shareholders, officers, directors, employees or other 
representatives, and no personal liability is assumed by, nor may at any time be asserted against, any of them, all such liability, if any, being expressly 
waived or released by Contractor and Owner/Manager. 
 
11. In connection with any litigation arising out of the Work or Contract Documents, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable 
attorney's fees and costs. 

 
J. Reservations 
 
1. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that the Proposal was prepared by Contractor utilizing only initial visual inspections of Owner/Manager’s 
building and property and based upon Owner/Manager’s representations. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that: (a) Contractor does not 
provide professional, design or consulting services of any kind, and (b) Contractor provision of any drawing, “site plan”, “layout” (or any drawing) 
shall be interpreted as only a contractor’s depiction which is not the product of any exercise of the “learned professions” and shall not be relied upon 
by Owner/Manager unless reviewed and certified by Owner/Manager’s retained design professional. Owner/Manager is encouraged to obtain the 
services of a licensed design professional to determine the condition of Owner/Manager’s structures.  
 
2. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that the Work consists of defined, limited and specific installation and repairs to specific areas of the 
building envelope, arising from actual or suspected water and moisture infiltration. Owner/Manager acknowledges that the building envelope is, prior 
to the Work, suffering from moisture infiltration and that this moisture infiltration may arise from various sources included, or not included, in the 
scope of Work. The Work to be performed by Contractor is not any guarantee or warranty that moisture will cease to infiltrate the structure following 



6 

 

completion of the Work, or that the result of the Work will be a “moisture-proof”, “water-proof” or “leak-proof” building (and any such guarantee or 
warranty, express or implied, is hereby disclaimed).  
 
3. Owner/Manager acknowledges and agrees that: (a) the Work is limited in scope (as detailed in the Proposal); (b) the Work arises from and/or relates 
to pre-existing building defects or conditions, and that other defects or conditions exist at the building which will not be addressed by the limited 
scope of the Work; (c) the Work will not remediate all existing building conditions that may require remediation, and; (d) the Work will not result in 
a “water-proof”, “moisture-proof” or “leak-proof” building. Owner/Manager accepts the foregoing limitations of scope, and releases Contractor on 
account of any loss, expense, damage or claims arising from the limitations of the limited scope of Work and/or from any claims of moisture or water 
intrusion arising from causes outside the limited scope of Work under the Proposal.  
 
K.  Miscellaneous 

The Contract Documents shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project/Building is located.  All obligations of these General Conditions 
shall survive the completion of the Work or earlier termination of the Contract Documents.  If a provision of these General Conditions is ruled invalid 
or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, that shall not affect the validity or enforceability in that jurisdiction of the remainder of the provision or any other 
provision of these General Conditions.   
 

CHAPTER 558 NOTICE OF CLAIM 
 
The Owner/Manager and Contractor have agreed that the requirements set forth in Chapter 558, Florida Statutes, apply to the Contract Documents. 
 
CHAPTER 558, FLORIDA STATUTES, CONTAINS IMPORTANT REQUIREMENTS YOU MUST FOLLOW 
BEFORE YOU MAY BRING ANY LEGAL ACTION FOR AN ALLEGED CONSTRUCTION DEFECT. SIXTY 
DAYS BEFORE YOU BRING ANY LEGAL ACTION, YOU MUST DELIVER TO THE OTHER PARTY TO 
THIS CONTRACT A WRITTEN NOTICE, REFERRING TO CHAPTER 558, OF ANY CONSTRUCTION 
CONDITIONS YOU ALLEGE ARE DEFECTIVE AND PROVIDE SUCH PERSON THE OPPORTUNITY TO 
INSPECT THE ALLEGED CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS AND TO CONSIDER MAKING AN OFFER TO 
REPAIR OR PAY FOR THE ALLEGED CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS. YOU ARE NOT OBLIGATED TO 
ACCEPT ANY OFFER WHICH MAY BE MADE. THERE ARE STRICT DEADLINES AND PROCEDURES 
UNDER THIS FLORIDA LAW WHICH MUST BE MET AND FOLLOWED TO PROTECT YOUR 
INTERESTS. 



Grand Panama Beach Condominium Association Inc. 

11800 Front Beach Rd. 

Panama City Beach, FL 32407 

 

July 17, 2025 

American Security Associates, INC.  

4394 Seminole Dr. 

Acworth, GA 30101 

 

Subject: Notice of Termination of Security Services Agreement 

Dear American Security Associates, INC.,  

This letter serves as formal notice that Grand Panama Beach Resort Condominium Association, Inc. 

will be terminating our service agreement with American Security Associates, INC., effective 30 days 

from the date of this letter, as per the terms outlined in our contract. 

This decision was not made lightly. However, after ongoing concerns and repeated observations, the 

Board of Directors and the Community Association Manager have determined that the level of service 

provided does not meet the expectations or needs of our community. The following issues have been 

documented: 

 Security officers have been observed, on numerous occasions, watching streaming content on 

personal devices while on duty. 

 Officers have frequently needed to be prompted to leave the office and actively patrol the property. 

 There have been multiple instances where officers failed to enforce guest identification protocols, 

such as verifying armbands. 

 During peak periods, including July, officers have been largely absent from high-traffic areas such 

as pools and parking lots. 

 Despite a formal request made in May for a second officer during the 3 PM to 11 PM shift, this 

request has not been fulfilled. 

These issues, among others, have led to a loss of confidence in your company’s ability to provide the 

proactive and professional security presence our community requires. 

We appreciate the services provided to date and request your cooperation in ensuring a smooth 

transition over the next 30 days. 

Sincerely, 

Lindsay Williams 

 

Community Association Manager 

On behalf of the Grand Panama Beach Resort Board of Directors 

Lindsay Williams linday.williams@fsresidential.com 850-585-7015 



PROPOSAL FOR  
SECURITY SERVICES 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Prepared for Grand Panama Beach 
Resort Condominium Association, INC 

 
July 16, 2025 



Contractor Summary 
 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC 
P.O. Box 9985 
Panama City Beach, FL. 32417 
OAice Phone: (850) 960-5437 
LLance7695@aol.com 
License Number: B 2900197 
 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC was founded in 2009 by Charles Lance Sr. and Linda Evans. 
These Panama City Beach natives noticed a gap in the market of security companies who 
provide professional, reliable security oAicers to the Panama City Beach area. L. Lance 
Security Service, LLC is the only locally owned and operated State of Florida “B” licensed 
security company whose owners live and work in Bay County. They have over 75 years 
combined law enforcement, corrections, and security experience. They are highly trained 
and experienced in executing security details and managing issues relating to protecting 
the public and property. 
 
Currently, we are partnered with over 15 job sites. These include Condominium 
Associations, neighborhood communities, apartment complexes and Bay County SheriA 
Dept. jail division. Due to our extensive expertise in the security industry, we have been 
involved in these partnerships for many years. Along with our full-time partnerships, we 
provide crowd control/security for special events, such as weddings, bonfires, concerts, 
and festivals. 
 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC currently has 70 employees. 80% of these employees have 
been employed with the company for 5 or more years. As a result, we are able to provide 
well trained and experienced oAicers to all of our clients. All L. Lance Security Service, LLC 
oAicers possess a current state of Florida class “D” security license. All armed L. Lance 
Security Service, LLC oAicers have previous law enforcement experience and/or previous 
corrections experience and a State of Florida class “G” firearms license. Since L. Lance 
Security Service, LLC is locally owned and operated we do not utilize contract or temporary 
labor. 
 
Chief Executive OAicer – Linda Evans- Authorized to sign contracts 
Chief Operations OAicer – Jared Abel-Lance- Authorized to sign contracts 
Managing Member – Charles Lance Sr.- Authorized to sign contracts 
Director of Field Operations – Charles Lance Jr. 
 
Capabilities, Methodology and Expected Results 
 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC specializes in gulf front condominium high rises that have a 
mixture of full-time residents, vacationers and short-term guests. These properties present 

mailto:LLance7695@aol.com


unique requirements, as they will have multiple entry points, multiple pools, lobby/owners 
lounge, multiple beach accesses and other amenities that must be patrolled. Along with 
patrolling the amenities, gulf front high rises typically have a major project that occurs once 
or twice a year. These projects could be as simple as replacing tile in a lobby, to as 
complicated as renovating the parking garage. For the duration of these projects, special 
security plans need to be implemented to minimize the inconvenience to guest/owners.  
 
The main points of entry for Grand Panama are the unsecured entrances attached to Front 
Beach Road from the north and south side of the road. To secure these points of entry, we 
recommend utilizing physical security presence to check all persons entering the property 
are approved and have the necessary documentation allowing entry. This includes verifying 
vendors via parking passes, ensuring all pedestrians have the required armbands, and 
reviewing rental/check-in paperwork. Once the person has been verified, they will be 
granted access to the property. L. Lance Security Service, LLC keeps detailed logs on 
vendors and visitors that have been granted access to the association’s property.  These 
logs are stored on the condominium’s property by month and year and can be easily 
accessed by the CAM or security manager. In the event a vendor, guest, or unauthorized 
guest is found parked in an incorrect manner, we will issue a parking boot preventing them 
from leaving until they pay the necessary fine and agree to abide by the rules and 
regulations in the future. 
 
The other points of entry onto the property are the gates behind the north parking lot (to 
Grand Panama Flats), the east and west property boundary, and the beach access on the 
south side of the pool deck. All five of these access points cannot be locked due to egress, 
prior agreements with third parties, or financial feasibility. In the event an unauthorized 
person has gained access to the property, our security oAicers are well trained to swiftly 
escort the unauthorized individual oA property. In the event an unauthorized individual 
attempts to gain access to the condominium’s property multiple times, we will contact the 
Panama City Beach Police Department to issue a formal trespass warning. 
 
The vertical build of high-rises poses many unique issues. Some of the issues are water 
leaks damaging multiple units when they occur, tracking security guard’s movements on 
property, condominium unit fires being able to spread to other units, and main electrical 
breakers being in a centralized location. L. Lance Security Service, LLC does not solely 
focus on securing the property from unauthorized visitors and enforce property rules. We 
also do everything in our power to prevent further damage to the building when issues do 
arise. Since L. Lance Security Service, LLC is on site 24/7/365, we are able to find water 
leaks when they occur and call the party responsible for the leak. We reset breakers for 
owners/authorized vendors, and we also go into units on fire to ensure all guest have 
vacated and work to control and extinguish the fire prior to the fire department arriving. This 
not only stops further damage to the association’s property, it also saves the association 
valuable resources.  
 



We have found through extensive trial and error, tracking security oAicers’ location on a 
high rise is best done through a deggy system. GPS tracking is not beneficial due to the 
property being built vertical rather than horizontal. The deggy system works by touching a 
wand to a button, in a specified location, to record the guards’ movements throughout the 
property. This system is the most reliable during natural disasters, cell tower outages, and 
prolonged power/internet outages.  
 
Executives, Sta<ing and Management 
 
Linda Lance Evans – Chief Executive OAicer 
Linda Lance Evans graduated from Brenau University with a degree in Public Administration 
and Criminal Justice. She worked for the Georgia Department of Corrections for 14 years. 
She was a member of the executive management team and a P.O.S.T. certified training 
instructor. She worked within the Care and Custody division developing programs used at 
each prison to manage and move the inmates in the most secure manner. She developed 
policies and procedures regarding security of inmates and staA. She currently holds a 
Florida class “D” security license and Florida Private Investigator license. She is a founding 
member of the company. 
 
Charles Lance Sr. – Manager 
Charles Lance Sr. graduated from the University of Georgia with a degree in Criminal 
Justice/Political Science. He has worked in Law Enforcement for 30 years. He began his 
career as patrol oAicer for the Athens-Clarke County Police Department.  He was also a 
member of the SWAT team. He was hired by the Georgia Department of Corrections as 
Director of Special Operations. This included the statewide K-9 program and the SWAT and 
CERT teams. The last assignment was a special task force assigned to the 1996 Olympic 
games held in Atlanta. He is a P.O.S.T. certified LEO and P.O.S.T. certified correctional 
oAicer. He is a licensed Private Investigator and Security OAicer in the State of Florida. He 
also has a Florida Statewide Firearms “G” license.  He is a founding member of the 
company. 
 
Jared Abel-Lance – Chief Operations OAicer 
Jared Abel-Lance graduated from the University of Central Florida with a degree in Business 
Management. Upon graduation, he moved back to his home town of Panama City Beach, 
FL and assumed the role of Chief Operations OAicer. He has worked in the security industry 
for 9 years, starting as a security oAicer. Since his time in security, he has revamped how 
schedules are made, supervised 70+ employees, worked as a site supervisor at multiple 
sites, and trained employees at newly acquired sites. He has been with the company since 
2015. 
 
Charles Lance, Jr. – Director of Field Operations 
Charles Lance, Jr. graduated from the Gulf Coast Criminal Justice Academy and obtained 
his State of Florida Certified Peace OAicer Certification in 2013. He was employed with the 



Panama City Beach Police Department as a law enforcement oAicer for 7 years. During his 
time with the Beach PD, he worked patrol, protecting our local beach area and enforcing 
laws and ordinances. He was also a Field Training OAicer, Certified Standard Field Sobriety 
Testing OAicer and obtained experience working with the investigation’s unit. He currently 
works as our Director of Field Operations, managing multiple job sites. He works closely 
with the CAM managers, to ensure that our employees, as well as guests, adhere to the 
rules and operations run seamlessly. 
 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC currently employs 70 licensed security oAicers. To meet the 
requirements of Grand Panama, there will be a minimum of 1 oAicer on duty 24 hours a day 
7 days a week. In season, the number of oAicers will fluctuate depending on the needs of 
the property - never going below 1 oAicer. L. Lance Security Service, LLC strives for 
consistency with the individuals assigned to their properties. Supervisors will work closely 
with the manager to curate a staA to fill the required number of hours. Once the oAicers 
have been assigned to Grand Panama, it will become their primary assigned property. 
Along with the assigned guards, L. Lance Security Service, LLC will have a team of trained 
fill-in guards. The fill-in guards will be prepared to cover any emergency shift added by the 
board or property manager or any un-scheduled time-oA request such as illness. 
 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC is the only locally owned and operated security company in 
Panama City Beach; we have deep rooted connections in this market we can call upon to 
obtain new security oAicers. Many of our current security oAicers have been stationed at 
their assigned property for many years. In the event an oAicer departs from our company, 
we are easily able to have them replaced. 
 
The security oAicers will be supervised by a designated full time Site Supervisor. The Site 
Supervisor will be closely monitored by our Chief Operations OAicer and Director of Field 
Operations. Below are our current Chief Operations OAicer and Director of Field 
Operations.  

 
o Chief Operations OAicer: Jared Abel-Lance – (850) 960-0146 
o Director of Field Operations: Charles Lance Jr. - (850) 381-9353 

 
Every security oAicer employed with L. Lance Security Service, LLC possesses a Class “D” 
license. To obtain this license, individuals are required to attend and pass a 42-hour class 
taught by state of Florida licensed “K” instructors and pass an extensive background check 
performed by the State of Florida. One third of our staA possess a Class “G” license. This 
license allows the security oAicers to carry duty issued weapons while on duty, if it is ever 
deemed necessary by the property. Along with Class “D” and Class “G” license, the Chief 
Operations OAicer closely monitors their eligibility to continue being a licensed security 
oAicer by performing background checks and license checks throughout their 
employment. The supervisors at L. Lance Security Service, LLC are continuously improving 
protocols. Once protocols have been added or improved, every oAicer is trained on the 



new protocol through demonstrations. At L. Lance Security Service, LLC training never 
stops. 
 
Scheduling of the required security personnel is done weekly. This allows L. Lance Security 
Service, LLC to be flexible enough to add security oAicers above the required amount on a 
moment’s notice. A copy of the security schedule is available to the security guards once 
drafted and the property manager upon request. 
 
Due to L. Lance Security Service, LLC having over 75 years combined law enforcement and 
security service experience, we are able to tailor an emergency and holiday plan specific to 
your needs. We will provide additional oAicers for every major holiday week, as well as 
having reserve oAicers available to add in the event of a security emergency or natural 
disaster.  
 
Communication 
 
The owners of L. Lance Security Service, LLC can be reached 24/7/365. We achieve this by 
giving our direct numbers to any board members that request it, as well as the property 
manager. You will never call a number provided by our company and reach a call center; 
you will always reach an owner of the company. Along with always being accessible by 
phone, the owners of L. Lance Security Service, LLC live within a 6.5-mile radius of Grand 
Panama. This allows them to be able to respond to events/issues in person, at moment’s 
notice.  
 
The site supervisor will meet with the CAM manager every Monday to address any events 
that have occurred over the weekend, as well as review the previous week’s deggy wand 
information. Throughout the week, the security oAicers update the CAM about the property 
as needed.  
 
The key to having a successful security plan implemented is to get a clear and concise 
message to everyone. This is done through site wide memos. Along with the memos, the 
site supervisor will go over the message with all guards.  
 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC’s managers plan to be in a group message with the CAM 
manager, site phone, and maintenance supervisor to be able to get a consistent message 
to all parties.  
 
 
 
 
  
 



Expense Breakdown 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC charges one set fee priced per hour worked.  This one fee 
includes all administrative costs required to execute the contract. This includes Worker 
Compensation insurance, general liability insurance, uniforms, administration and payroll 
cost. L. Lance Security Service, LLC does not charge the client for overtime cost. If oAicers 
incur overtime, we assume that cost. We do charge a time and a half rate of $37.50 for the 
following holidays: New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving 
Day and Christmas Day. L. Lance Security Service, LLC understands that there are times 
that an extra shift or extra security hours need to be added by the association that were not 
anticipated. If L. Lance Security Service, LLC has the ability to accommodate these 
requests, we do not increase the rate when these things happen, due to the nature of the 
industry. 
 
Terms Of Agreement 
 
The proposed contract length would be 36 months with a 90-day termination clause by 
either party with or without cause. The annual agreement price is subject to adjustment 
only on each anniversary of the commencement date to reflect increases/decreases in 
labor or other cost. The annual price adjustment will be provided to Grand Panama during 
their budgeting process. The proposed contract will automatically renew 90 days before the 
expiration date, unless written notice is provided by either Client or Contractor.

  Standard StaA Site Supervisor 

Hourly Rate  $                25.00   $                          27.00  

Holiday 
Hourly Rate  $                37.50   $                          40.50  



 
Licensing and Bonding 
 
See Appendix A for copies of the license and certificates of insurance. 
 
Uniforms 
 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC currently has four authorized shirts. 

1. Classic Class A shirt 
2. Lightweight Class A shirt 
3. Support staA shirt 
4. Black polos 

 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC has 4 authorized bottoms 

1. Black long pants 
2. Black shorts 
3. Khaki long pants  
4. Khaki shorts 

 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC has 2 authorized outer layer jackets 

1. Lightweight company jacket 
2. Heavyweight company jacket 

 
As required by the department of Agriculture, we have embordered all uniforms to be in 
compliance with their regulations.  
 
Unique Requirements 
 
Every security oAicer employed with L. Lance Security Service, LLC possesses a Class “D” 
license. To obtain this license, individuals are required to attend and pass a 42-hour class 
taught by state of Florida licensed “K” instructors and pass an extensive background check 
performed by the State of Florida. One third of our staA possess a Class “G” license. This 
license allows the security oAicers to carry duty issued weapons while on duty, if it is ever 
deemed necessary by the property. Along with Class “D” and Class “G” license, the Chief 
Operations OAicer closely monitors their eligibility to continue being a licensed security 
oAicer by performing background checks and license checks throughout their 
employment. 
 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC partners with Gulf Coast State College to perform our Class 
“D” and Class “G” classes. This partnership allows us to utilize all of our resources on the 
condominium properties.  
 



L. Lance Security Service, LLC has a plethora of protocols ready to implement in the event 
there is a natural disaster or uptick in crime. One third of L. Lance Security Service, LLC is 
class “G” certified. This means we can carry duty issued weapons while on duty. This 
service is necessary to deter looters after a devastating natural disaster, or if there is an 
uptick in crime. This service is performed at the request of the property. Along with the 
class “G” licenses, our company “rides out” hurricanes on site. We have never abandoned 
a property in the event a hurricane threatens Panama City Beach. The owners of L. Lance 
Security Service, LLC were on site before during and after Hurricane Michael, the most 
recent hurricane that devastated this town. 
 
Due to L. Lance Security Service, LLC being the only locally owned and operated security 
company in Panama City Beach, we are able to deploy a backup staA to assist the main 
guards in the event an emergency arises. This is beneficial to the property because we can 
perform Firewatch within a 24 hour notice, crowd control in the event there is unruly guest, 
and assist the CAM/maintenance with emergencies.  
 
Insurance 
 
L. Lance Security Service, LLC is an independent contractor in the legal sense of that term.  
The Contractor shall obtain and maintain all workers compensation, unemployment 
insurance, public liability insurance, company vehicle insurance, and any other insurance 
required by law, including general liability insurance coverage of not less than 
$1,000,000.00 per occurrence.  We will provide the association with written copies of all 
insurance policies yearly.   
 
References 
 
See Appendix B for our references.  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
APPENDIX A 

  







Document Number
FEI/EIN Number
Date Filed

Effective Date
State

Status

Department of State /  Division of Corporations /  Search Records /  Search by Entity Name /

Detail by Entity Name
Florida Limited Liability Company
L. LANCE SECURITY SERVICE, LLC

Filing Information

L11000103302

45-3219545

09/09/2011

09/04/2011

FL

ACTIVE

Principal Address

7113 LAGOON DR
PANAMA CITY BEACH, FL 32408

Changed: 06/08/2020

Mailing Address

P.O. BOX 9985
PANAMA CITY BEACH, FL 32417

Registered Agent Name & Address

EVANS, LINDA G
7113 LAGOON DR
PANAMA CITY BEACH, FL 32408

Name Changed: 01/24/2017

Address Changed: 06/08/2020

Authorized Person(s) Detail

Name & Address

Title CEO

EVANS, LINDA G
7113 LAGOON DR
PANAMA CITY BEACH, FL 32408

Title COO

DIVISION OF CORPORATIONSFlorida Department of State

7/16/25, 3:51 PM Detail by Entity Name

https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/SearchResultDetail?inquirytype=EntityName&directionType=Initial&searchNameOrder=LLANCESECURITYS… 1/2

http://dos.myflorida.com/
http://dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/
http://dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/search/
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/ByName
http://dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/
http://dos.myflorida.com/


LANCE, JARED W
2415 PELICAN BAY CT
PANAMA CITY BEACH, FL 32408

Title DIRECTOR OF FIELD OPERATIONS

LANCE JR, CHARLES R
6409 PINE DR
Panama City BEACH, FL 32408

Annual Reports

Report Year Filed Date
2023 03/20/2023
2024 02/01/2024
2025 03/06/2025

Document Images

03/06/2025 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

02/01/2024 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

03/20/2023 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

03/03/2022 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

04/23/2021 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

06/08/2020 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

06/17/2019 -- AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

03/13/2019 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

04/26/2018 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

01/24/2017 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

04/26/2016 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

04/28/2015 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

04/28/2014 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

04/29/2013 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

04/25/2012 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

09/09/2011 -- Florida Limited Liability View image in PDF format

Florida Department of State, Division of Corporations

7/16/25, 3:51 PM Detail by Entity Name

https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/SearchResultDetail?inquirytype=EntityName&directionType=Initial&searchNameOrder=LLANCESECURITYS… 2/2

https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-332d13ab-372e-4195-87bd-b5d01c6a6498&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-332d13ab-372e-4195-87bd-b5d01c6a6498&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-472c52ac-5f10-4d94-b280-c244dd82e513&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-472c52ac-5f10-4d94-b280-c244dd82e513&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-50974216-bf05-42cf-9e0e-7bcb33b7c719&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-50974216-bf05-42cf-9e0e-7bcb33b7c719&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-efebec26-dd6e-4198-b842-4b775882b490&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-efebec26-dd6e-4198-b842-4b775882b490&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-46697dc3-2fdb-45ac-937f-b4ebce2526a0&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-46697dc3-2fdb-45ac-937f-b4ebce2526a0&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-95bc85c5-6679-4de5-be6d-36f6f1e1a0cd&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-95bc85c5-6679-4de5-be6d-36f6f1e1a0cd&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-897c337e-5412-4bf0-9581-6ad6992f92ad&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-897c337e-5412-4bf0-9581-6ad6992f92ad&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-dc2ccbc5-ab64-4247-a798-190c3df3538c&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-dc2ccbc5-ab64-4247-a798-190c3df3538c&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-a2fe0cc8-00fd-4844-a824-113feeaa525e&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-a2fe0cc8-00fd-4844-a824-113feeaa525e&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-9f5caca4-92ed-4eeb-858c-d6f282a93272&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-9f5caca4-92ed-4eeb-858c-d6f282a93272&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-34d617d9-90de-4059-822b-7eb177f2ad32&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-34d617d9-90de-4059-822b-7eb177f2ad32&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-d7301dd0-7a9d-479e-ac0b-541f478d6cd3&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-d7301dd0-7a9d-479e-ac0b-541f478d6cd3&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-d390e7fe-921b-4f32-8b94-8667e91b82df&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-d390e7fe-921b-4f32-8b94-8667e91b82df&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-acb2ac96-35a2-431d-8798-06746f1339c7&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/GetDocument?aggregateId=flal-l11000103302-3596a406-169b-4ace-a510-7e399d2f7388&transactionId=l11000103302-acb2ac96-35a2-431d-8798-06746f1339c7&formatType=PDF
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/ConvertTiffToPDF?storagePath=COR%5C2012%5C0425%5C31443827.tif&documentNumber=L11000103302
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/ConvertTiffToPDF?storagePath=COR%5C2012%5C0425%5C31443827.tif&documentNumber=L11000103302
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/ConvertTiffToPDF?storagePath=COR%5C2011%5C0909%5C50928805.tif&documentNumber=L11000103302
https://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/ConvertTiffToPDF?storagePath=COR%5C2011%5C0909%5C50928805.tif&documentNumber=L11000103302






 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











9850 S Thomas Drive 
Panama City Beach, FL 32408 

of 
Panama City Beach Owners’ Association, Inc. 

December 11, 2024 

L. Lance Security Service, LLC 
Attn: Jared Able-Lance 
Post Office Box 9985 
Panama City Beach, FL 32417-0365 

To Whom It May Concern: 

I am writing to recommend L. Lance Security Service, LLC as your provider of security 
services. Lance has provided security service for the Sunbird of Panama City Beach for 
over 3 years. I have nothing but praise for Jared and his security guards. 

L. Lance Security Service is not considered to be our security company, they are part of 
our Sunbird team. L. Lance Security’s management and the security guards always go 
the extra mile for our owners, guests, and assisting other staff. The security guards are 
polite, professional, and dependable. 

When L. Lance started as our security service, the Sunbird did not have a written security 
manual. Jared worked with our Board of Directors to customize a complete written 
security plan and implement the procedures. But L. Lance Security Services provides far 
more than simply basic security services. 

On the occasion when our elevators have been out of service, I have personally 
witnessed the L. Lance security guards helping guests or owners up the stairs and 
carrying items for them. If we have a maintenance emergency during the night, security 
has usually contacted our maintenance staff almost before any Board Members are aware 
of the issue. 

During Spring Break, L. Lance Security provides extra guards to manage the crowds. 
When the crowds surge or become unruly, L. Lance is able to quickly move guards from 
other properties to manage the problem.  

My personal experience with Jared Abel-Lance is that he is available 24/7/365 to tackle 
any problem that has occurred. Jared and L. Lance Security Service are a valued partner. 
Without hesitation, I can recommend L. Lance Security Service, LLC. If you have any 
questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me at 770-310-5142. 

Best regards, 

Denise Burks, Secretary 
Sunbird Board of Directors 


	GP cover sheet.pdf (p.1)
	Table of contents.pdf (p.2)
	GP BOD meeting 07.17 - revised.pdf (p.3)
	GP Board Meeting Minutes June 25, 2025 Revised.pdf (p.4-6)
	1. CALL TO ORDER, QUORUM AND ROLL CALL
	2. PROOF OF NOTICE OR WAIVER
	3. NEW BUSINESS
	4. OPEN FORUM
	5. MOTION TO ADJOURN

	Grand Panama Tower 1 Generator Repair- Fuel Pump.pdf (p.7-8)
	GP emergency protocol.pdf (p.9)
	Grand Panama - Exterior Condition Survey - 06-13-24 (1) (2)-BECI.pdf (p.10-23)
	June 13, 2024

	Valcourt Proposal-Grand Panama Beach Resort-r061325.pdf (p.24-32)
	Term Letter to ASA.pdf (p.33)
	Grand Panama Proposal - lance.pdf (p.34-55)

